
 

 
Agenda\Planning Applications Committee\3 November 2022 

Page 1 

Department: Democratic Services 

Division:  Legal & Democratic Services 

Please ask for: Katharine Simpson 

Direct Tel: 01276 707157 

 
 

Surrey Heath Borough Council 

Surrey Heath House 
Knoll Road 
Camberley 

Surrey GU15 3HD 
Telephone: (01276) 707100 
Facsimile: (01276) 707177 

DX: 32722 Camberley 
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk 

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.uk 

    
 

Monday, 17 October 2022 
 

To: The Members of the Planning Applications Committee 
(Councillors: Edward Hawkins (Chairman), Victoria Wheeler (Vice Chairman), 
Graham Alleway, Peter Barnett, Cliff Betton, Stuart Black, Mark Gordon, David Lewis, 
Charlotte Morley, Liz Noble, Robin Perry, Darryl Ratiram, Graham Tapper, 
Helen Whitcroft and Valerie White) 

 
In accordance with the Substitute Protocol at Part 4 of the Constitution, 
Members who are unable to attend this meeting should give their apologies and 
arrange for one of the appointed substitutes, as listed below, to attend.  
Members should also inform their group leader of the arrangements made. 
 
Substitutes: Councillors Dan Adams, Paul Deach, Sharon Galliford, 
Rebecca Jennings-Evans, Emma-Jane McGrath, Morgan Rise, John Skipper, 
Pat Tedder and Vacancy 
 

Site Visits 
 

Members of the Planning Applications Committee and Local Ward Members may 
make a request for a site visit. Requests in writing, explaining the reason for the 
request, must be made to the Development Manager and copied to the Head of 
Planning and the Democratic Services Officer by 4pm on the Thursday 
preceding the Planning Applications Committee meeting. 
 

Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the Planning Applications Committee will be held at Council Chamber, 
Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 3HD on Thursday, 3 November 2022 
at 7.00 pm.  The agenda will be set out as below.  

 
Please note that this meeting will be recorded. 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Damian Roberts 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 

AGENDA 
  Pages  
1  Apologies for Absence   

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Agenda\Planning Applications Committee\3 November 2022 

Page 2 

 
2  Minutes of Previous Meeting   

 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Applications Committee held on 6th October 2022. 
 
  

3 - 6 

 
3  Declarations of Interest   

 
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 
non pecuniary interests they may have with respect to matters which are 
to be considered at this meeting.  Members who consider they may have 
an interest are invited to consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic 
Services Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
  

 

 
Human Rights Statement 

 
The Human Rights Act 1998 (the Act) has incorporated part of the European 
Convention on Human Rights into English law. All planning applications are 
assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the development 
proposal is compatible with the Act. If there is a potential conflict, this will be 
highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 
  

Planning Applications 
  

4  Application Number: 21/1176 Solstrand, Station Road, Bagshot*   
 

7 - 48 
 
5  Application Number: 22/0655 17 Junction Road, Lightwater   

 
49 - 58 

 
* indicates that the application met the criteria for public speaking 

  
Glossary 

 
 



 

Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\6 October 2022 

  Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning 
Applications Committee held at 
Council Chamber, Surrey Heath 
House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 
3HD on 6 October 2022  

 
 + Cllr Edward Hawkins (Chairman) 
 

- 
+ 
- 
* 
+ 
+ 
+ 

Cllr Victoria Wheeler 
Cllr Graham Alleway 
Cllr Peter Barnett 
Cllr Cliff Betton 
Cllr Stuart Black 
Cllr Mark Gordon 
Cllr David Lewis 

+
+ 
- 
+ 
+ 
- 
- 

Cllr Charlotte Morley 
Cllr Liz Noble 
Cllr Robin Perry 
Cllr Darryl Ratiram 
Cllr Graham Tapper 
Cllr Helen Whitcroft 
Cllr Valerie White 

 +  Present 
 -  Apologies for absence presented 
 * In attendance virtually but did not vote 
 
Substitutes: Cllr Paul Deach for Cllr Valerie White (Minute 34/P onwards) and Cllr 

Pat Tedder for Cllr Victoria Wheeler 
 
Officers Present: Bex Green 

Shannon Kimber 
William Hinde 
Simon Peplow – Surrey County Council 
Lucy Phillips 
Navil Rahman 
Nick Steevens 
Rachel Whillis 

 
  

29/P  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Applications Committee held on 1 September 2022 be approved as 
being a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
  

30/P  Application Number 22/0423: Gordon Murray HQ, Chertsey Road, 
Windlesham, GU20 6HL 
 
The application was for an alteration to a grant of permission related to a major 
scheme application and was a departure from the Development Plan as it was a 
major development within the Green Belt and therefore, under the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation, was to be reported to the Planning Applications 
Committee. 
  
The application related to the variation of Condition 22 (highway improvement 
works) which allowed the required improvements at the Highams Lane/ Chertsey 
Road junction to be implemented as prior to the commencement of phase three of 
the development and removal of Condition 24 as the temporary bridleway 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2 



 

Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\6 October 2022 

diversion was not considered necessary with the existing bridleway route 
unaffected. 
  
It was noted that a site visit that members could attend had taken place. Members 
received the following additional informative: 
  

         Where minor highway works require the removal of any vegetation to the 
highway land, it is recommended this be replaced with appropriate soft 
landscaping with no net loss of biodiversity. 

         The construction of any major highway works is recommended to fall 
outside of school term time to avoid disruption to the highway network 
during these periods. 

  
The officer recommendation to grant the application, subject to the condition 
proposed in the officer’s report and the update sheet, was proposed by Councillor 
Tapper, seconded by Councillor Black and put to the vote and carried.  
  

RESOLVED that application 22/0423 be approved subject to the 
conditions in the officer report and update sheet. 
  
NOTE 1  
In accordance with Part 4, Section D, Paragraph 18 of the Constitution, 
the voting in relation to the application, and the officer’s 
recommendation to grant the application, was as follows: 
  
Voting in favour of the officer recommendation to approve the 
applications: Councillors Graham Alleway, Stuart Black, Mark Gordon, 
Edward Hawkins, David Lewis, Charlotte Morley, Liz Noble, Darryl 
Raitram and Graham Tapper. 
  
Abstained from voting: Councillor Pat Tedder. 
  

31/P  Application Number 22/0408: 15 Milden Close, Frimley Green, Camberley, 
GU16 6PX 
 
The application was for the erection of a detached outbuilding to form an annexe 
building ancillary to the existing single-family dwelling. 
  
The application was reported to the Planning Applications Committee on the 
request of Councillor Black for scrutiny of the proposal as the previously approved 
detached garage, which this outbuilding would replace was explicitly conditioned 
by the previous planning permission to prevent it from being severed from the 
main building; the previous planning permission was 20/0521. 
  
The officer recommendation to grant the application, subject to the conditions 
proposed in the officer’s report was proposed by Councillor Black, seconded by 
Councillor Tedder and put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
  

RESOLVED that application 22/0408 be approved subject to the 
conditions in the officer report. 
  

Page 4



 

Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\6 October 2022 

NOTE 1 
In accordance with Part 4, Section D, Paragraph 18 of the Constitution, 
the voting in relation to the application, and the officer’s 
recommendation to grant the application was as follows: 
  
Voting in favour of the officer recommendation to approve the 
application: Councillors Graham Alleway, Stuart Black, Mark Gordon, 
Edward Hawkins, David Lewis, Charlotte Morley, Liz Noble, Darryl 
Raitram, Graham Tapper and Pat Tedder. 
  

32/P  Application Number 22/0817: 39 Commonfields, West End, GU24 9JA 
 
The application was for permission for the erection of a single storey side 
extension following the demolition of the existing garage and car port. 
  
This application would normally be determined under the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. However, it was reported to the Planning Applications Committee 
because the applicant was Councillor Graham Alleway. 
  
The officer recommendation that the application be approved, subject to the 
conditions proposed in the officer’s report and the update sheet, was proposed by 
Councillor Liz Noble, seconded by Councillor David Lewis and put to the vote and 
carried unanimously. 
  

RESOLVED that application 22/0817 be approved subject to the 
conditions in the officer report and update 
  
NOTE 1 
It was noted for the record that  
  

(i)   In accordance with the Members’ code of conduct, Councillor 
Graham Alleway declared a pecuniary interest as he was the 
applicant and left the chamber during the consideration of the 
item; and 
(ii) Councillor Edward Hawkins declared on behalf of all 
Committee Members that they knew the applicant as he was a 
fellow Councillor. 

  
  
NOTE 2 
In accordance with Part 4, Section D, Paragraph 18 of the Constitution, 
the voting in relation to the application, and the officer’s 
recommendation to grant the application was as follows: 
  
Voting in favour of the officer recommendation to approve the 
application: Councillors Stuart Black, Mark Gordon, Edward Hawkins, 
David Lewis, Charlotte Morley, Liz Noble, Darryl Raitram, Graham 
Tapper and Pat Tedder. 
 

 

Page 5



 

Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\6 October 2022 

 
33/P  Exclusion of Public and Press 

 
RESOLVED that pursuant to Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of item 11 Planning Enforcement 
Priority Cases as the items involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3: 
  

(1)              Information relating to any individual 
(2)              Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
  

34/P  Planning Enforcement Update 
 
The committee considered a report setting out the current status of planning 
enforcement priority cases and a proposed staffing structure. 
  

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Chairman  

Page 6



 

 

 

21/1176/FFU Reg. Date  27 October 2021 Bagshot 

 

 

 LOCATION: Solstrand, Station Road, Bagshot, Surrey, GU19 5AS,  

 PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwelling and all associated buildings and 
structures and erection of 3 detached three bedroom dwellings 
with associated car parking, refuse storage and collection point 
and landscaping. 

 TYPE: Full Planning Application 

 APPLICANT: Mr Arran Atkinson 

 OFFICER: Melissa Turney 

 

This application would normally be determined under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
However, it has been called-in by Cllr Valerie White due to concerns of over development of 
the site, height, bulk and mass, overbearing, impact on privacy of neighbours and highway 
issues.  

This application was deferred from the 4th August 2022 Planning Applications Committee to 
enable a full drainage strategy to be provided. This was the only outstanding matter, with all 
other matters considered to be acceptable by Members.  

UPDATE:  

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT, subject to conditions 

Background 

(i) Following an officer deferral from the 9th June Planning Applications Committee, this 
application was reported back to the Committee on 4th August 2022 with an officer 
recommendation for approval. The recommendation was voted upon and lost. 
However, Members could not provide defensible reasons for refusing the application 
and so the application was deferred solely on drainage grounds. This is explained by 
the Minutes, extract below: 
 
Following discussion about reasons for refusal and questions raised in relation to the 
proposed development, Members indicated a preference for refusing the planning 
application based on character and design, highways, amenity impact along with 
drainage.  However, the Committee was referred to the report and advice received 
from consultees to the planning application in relation to each area identified for 
refusal.  Furthermore, it was advised that all of the reasons given were not defendable 
at appeal and therefore were not considered as reason for refusal for the planning 
application.  Although, the drainage element of the application was conditioned, 
Members requested upfront information to satisfy this concern. It was therefore agreed 
that the application would be deferred only on this element of the application and would 
be reported back to the Committee once details were worked up in full on a drainage 
strategy for the site.  Once this drainage strategy had been completed, the application 
would be reported back to the Committee for consideration of this outstanding matter 
only. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4 



 

 

(ii) A detailed drainage strategy has now been received (see paragraphs (iv) onwards for 
details of this strategy). A 14 day re-consultation period has been undertaken on this 
strategy with neighbour notification letters sent out on 19th October 2022. Any 
additional letters of representation received (beyond those already report in the 
original report) will be reported as an update.  
 

(iii) The applicant has engaged with the Council’s Drainage Engineer to design an 
agreeable solution. The Council’s Drainage Engineer supports the drainage strategy, 
subject to conditions. He also seeks off-site improvement works (see paragraphs xvii – 
xxi below for further consideration).  
 
 

Drainage Strategy 

(iv) The applicant has provided the following additional drainage information:  
 

• Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Maintenance Plan  

• Drainage layout (Drawing 22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9000 Rev P06)  
• External works layout (Drawing 22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9100 Rev P04 and 

22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9101 Rev P04)  
 

(v) The drainage submission includes technical details of the proposed surface and foul 
water drainage strategy, set out in the above documents.  
 

(vi) The surface water drainage strategy is to discharge water from all areas into the 
existing Thames Water surface water sewer located to the front of the site within the 
highway of Station Road. This will be via an attenuated discharge at a rate of 5.0l/s, 
subject to agreement by Thames Water.  
 

(vii) Surface water drainage from Plot 1 will fall under gravity with flow controlled using a 
hyrobrake. Excess surface water will be stored using an overside pipework and 
manhole chambers located to the front of plot 1.  Surface water from plots 2 and 3 will 
be pumped up to the mixing chamber after the plot 1 hydrobrake. Excess surface water 
for plots 2 and 3 will be provided by the permeable sub-base within the turning head 
and surface water pumping chamber itself. This pumping chamber is located under the 
turning head.  
 

(viii) The strategy layout has been designed to accommodate a 1 in 100 year (+40% climate 
change) storm events below ground. For events greater than this the proposal has 
been designed to allow for excess surface water to flood from the channel drain at the 
top of the access road. From there the surface water will flow down the access road to 
the lower part of the site over the turning head outside plot 2 where it would then drain 
into the water pump (located under the turning head). For events of 1 in 200 years 
(+70% climate change) the turning head would flood by 25mm.  
 

(ix) In the event of surface water pump failure, excess surface water would first be stored 
within the pump chambers and permeable sub-base within the turning head. If capacity 
was exceeded, then surface water would be collected above ground within the turning 
head to a maximum depth of 50mm. After this depth water will spill over a weir kerb 
placed between plots 2 and 3 and follow an overland route towards the southern 
eastern corner of the site. This shown by the larger blue arrows on the drainage layout 
plan (see off-site works below for further information). To prevent flooding from the 
Thames Water mains affecting the site; excess surface water will flood from the mixing 
chamber at the site entrance. From there water will flow above ground westwards 

Page 8



 

 

along Station Road. A non-return valve will be placed on the incoming main from the 
flow control chamber, to prevent water backing up into the private drainage. 

 
(x) The external works layout plan (9001 P04) shows the different materials of the hard 

standing including the following:  
 

• Access road – light duty tarmac  
• Driveways – block paving 
• Footpaths around the dwellings - Paving   

 
(xi) For foul water drainage, plot 1 would reuse the existing connection. For plot 2 and 3 a 

foul pump chamber will be placed within the turning head to lift foul water into the 
existing off-site connection. The strategy explains that the pump chamber will be 
designed to accommodate sufficient foul water storage from the 2 properties for a 
minimum period of 24 hours, should the event of a power, or mechanical, failure to the 
pumps. 
 

Maintenance: 

 
(xii) The maintenance of the surface water drainage infrastructure would be undertaken by 

a specialist maintenance company, overseen and organised by a managing agent. 
The managing agent will also be responsible to  maintain the foul drainage network 
and the estate roads on site.  
 

(xiii) The conventional piped network and attenuation devices have been designed to 
facilitate access for regular inspection and maintenance in accordance with Building 
Regulations and Sewer Sector Guidance. All maintenance operations are to be carried 
out in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations. Intervals will not exceed 
12 months. Inspections will be the responsibility of the managing agent to organise.  
 

(xiv) Further safeguards are proposed for residents. This includes each pump having a 
separate electricity supply and meter independent from individual supplies for each 
plot. The future occupiers  will be provided with 24hr contact details to enable direct 
contact with the specialist pump maintenance company should the managing agent be 
contactable. In the event of the failure of the pump a warning system will be provided to 
alert occupiers or management company.  
 

(xv) The drainage scheme will be installed and operational before occupation of the 
dwellings and this can be secured by condition.  
 

Summary: 

 
(xvi) In the officer’s opinion the drainage strategy would comply with the NPPF and PPG 

which states the requirements to comply with 1 in 100 year event (plus climate 
change). The proposal has been designed by accounting for surface water flooding 
likely to occur with a 1% annual probability (1 in 100 year event) and takes account of a 
40% increase with climate change. The modelling has gone beyond this and has also 
been designed to take into account a simulated event of 1 in 200 years, plus 70% 
climate change i.e. beyond the national policy requirements. In this scenario the 
turning head would only flood by 25mm. As such, in the officer’s opinion the drainage 
strategy is robust and is supported by the Council’s Drainage Engineer.   

 

Page 9



 

 

Off-site infrastructure works 

(xvii) Beyond the on-site strategy, the Drainage Engineer has also considered a worst-case 
scenario in the event that excess surface water from the site from excess rainfall went 
above these threshold limits. This also includes the worst-case scenario of a failure to 
the power of the pump and backup. With such an extreme event, the off-site discharge 
from excess rainfall could potentially cause a greater increase in the volume and 
speed of the surface water run-off and exacerbate flooding off-site, however, this 
cannot be quantified. This could impact upon neighbouring land to the south of the site, 
namely Hartdene Court, and could impact upon the capacity of an existing culvert and 
the downstream catchment. Currently this basin area has limited capacity and 
restricted outlet. However, as outlined above in paragraph (xvi) the drainage scheme 
has been designed above and beyond the national policy requirements.  

 
(xviii) However, such a scenario must also be considered within the context of pre-existing 

flooding. Hartdene Court already experiences surface water flooding, being partly 
located within flood zones 2 and 3. Moreover, in such an extreme event, flooding would 
be wider and could not be said to be attributed solely to the additional run-off from the 
application site, when this is only a minor development being for a net increase of two 
dwellings.   
 

(xix) The Drainage Engineer’s view is that any additional hardstanding from the status quo 
ought to be mitigated for off-site but he accepts that this is a highly precautionary 
approach. To secure this he has requested a financial contribution of £6,000 for SHBC 
to undertake flood improvement works. These works would improve the flow of water 
by diverting exceedance flows south of the site to an existing culvert and would 
upgrade the connection discharge, including enlarged pipework downstream i.e. 
beneath Wardle Close.  

 area for use.  
(xx) Planning obligations must only be used when they meet three tests: Necessary to 

make the development acceptable in planning terms; directly related to the 
development; and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind of the development. 
In the officer’s opinion the drainage engineer’s request would not pass these tests. 
Firstly, this is because for the reasons explained above a pragmatic approach ought to 
be taken. This obligation would be unduly onerous upon the applicant when the on-site 
drainage strategy complies with national and local policy. Secondly, the drainage 
engineer failed to fully cost or explain how the money would be spent and this 
imprecision is unreasonable. Thirdly, this would be part of wider flooding 
improvements that the engineer wishes to make and the harm cannot be attributed 
solely to this development. Fourthly, there is uncertainty as to the third-party land 
affected by these works and the agreement of these third parties including County 
Highways, Network Rail and potentially private landowners.  

 
(xxi) Officers’ explored whether a Grampian condition (i.e a negatively worded condition 

that precludes any development on site until these off-site works have been 
completed) could be used as an alternative. However, for similar reasons as outlined in 
paragraph (xx) the Grampian condition would not meet the test for imposing a 
condition. As such, neither approach would meet the tests.  

 
Other matters 

(xxii) At the 4th August committee, it was agreed that a condition preventing the conversion 
of the garage at Plot 2 to accommodation should be added to the application. 
Condition 20 is therefore recommended.  
 

Page 10



 

 

(xxiii) Concerns were also previously raised about icing of Bridge Road. However, the 
Council’s Drainage Engineer has confirmed that this development would have no 
impact upon this existing issue and so is completely unrelated to this scheme.  

 

AMENDED RECOMMENDATION 

Subject to amendments to condition 2 to update the drawing numbers; amendments to 
drainage conditions 18 and 19 to include the agreed drainage strategy; and additional 
condition 20 to prevent conversion of the garage the application is recommended for approval. 
An additional informative will also be added to outlined to the applicant what information is 
expected to be submitted for the approval of condition 19. For completeness, reference should 
be made to all the conditions listed at the end of the original report that follows this update.  

 

Amended condition 2 

The proposed development shall be built in accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
21.002.E(PA) 021 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.E(PA) 022 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
21.002.E(PA) 023 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.E(PA) 024 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 001 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
21.002.L(PA) 010 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 011 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 015 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
21.002.L(PA) 016 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 017 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.S(PA) 030 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
SD20569-01-A Received: 20.07.2022 
Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Maintenance Plan Received: 18.10.2022 
22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9000 Rev P06 Received: 18.10.2022 
22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9100 Rev P04 Received: 18.10.2022 
22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9101 Rev P04 Received: 18.10.2022 
 

unless the prior written approval has been obtained from the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning and as advised in 
ID.17a of the Planning Practice Guidance. 
 

Amendments to condition 18  

The development hereby permitted drainage scheme shall be carried out and maintained in 
accordance with approved details: 

• Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Maintenance Plan  
• Drainage layout (Drawing 22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9000 Rev P06)  
• External works layout (Drawing 22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9100 Rev P04 and 

22391-GAP-XX-00-DR-C- 9101 Rev P04)  
 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to accord 
with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012 and the 
NPPF. 
 

 

Page 11



 

 

Amendments to condition 19  

Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a qualified 
drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This 
must demonstrate that the drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme 
(or detail any minor variations), provide the details of any management company and state the 
national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water attenuation 
devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls). 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to accord 
with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012 and the 
NPPF. 
 

Additional condition 20 

The plot 2 garage hereby permitted shall be retained for such purpose only and shall not be 
converted into living accommodation without further planning permission from the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the provision of on-site parking accommodation and to accord with Policy 
CP11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012. 

 

Additional informative 12 

It is drawn to the applicant attention that for the submission of approval of condition 19 the 
below details are required to be submitted;  

 

• Maintenance obligations for pumped foul drainage systems to include the full 
operational restoration of foul drainage pumps, or to have an alternative provision in 
place, within 24 hours, to ensure property drainage is not affected and surface water 
provisions are not contaminated by surcharge. 

 

• Maintenance obligations for pumped surface water drainage to include the full 
operational restoration of surface water drainage pumps, or to have an alternative 
provision in place, within 12 hours, to provide a sufficient drain down time of surface 
water attenuation systems. 

 

 

 

FIRST COMMITTEE UPDATE PROVIDED TO THE PLANNING APPLICATION - 

 

UPDATE 
 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT, subject to conditions 
 
(i) This application was deferred from Planning Applications Committee on 9th June 

before it was presented to Committee Members. It was deferred because officers 
deemed that insufficient information had been provided in relation to the drainage of 

Page 12



 

 

the site. Whilst the site is located outside of flood zones 2 (medium risk) and 3 (high 
risk) it is in close proximity to these flood zones to the south and west. Furthermore, 
given that the land levels significantly alter on the site, and given the increase in 
hardstanding, it was considered vital to obtain drainage details upfront, in the interests 
of neighbouring properties.  
 

(ii) The applicant has provided the following additional drainage information: 
  

• Surface water design calculations  
• Surface water drainage strategy and maintenance  
• Drainage Strategy (Drawing 9000 P02) 
• External works layout plan (Drawing 9001 P02) 
• Topographical Survey (SD20569-01A)  

 
 

(iii) The drainage submission includes technical details of the proposed surface and foul 
water drainage strategy. The surface water drainage strategy is to discharge water 
from all areas into the existing Thames Water surface water sewer. This will be via an 
attenuated discharge with the use of an attenuation tank to the north east corner of the 
site adjacent to the highway, subject to agreement by Thames Water. Surface water at 
the lower end of the site for plots 2 and 3 will be pumped up to higher part of the site. 
Storage for the excess surface water at the lower end of the site will be provided by a 
permeable sub-base within the turning head.  
 

(iv) Maintenance of the systems would require inspection chambers, silt traps, and or 
rodding eyes to allow surface water drains to be jetted and cleared. The attenuation 
tank will contain a row of Wavin Aquacell Core units, along the base, which will allow 
the tank to be cleaned from end to end. The network will be maintained by the 
management company for the development.  
 

(v) The external works layout plan (9001 P02) shows the different materials of the hard 
standing including the following: 

• Access road – light duty tarmac  
• Driveways – block paving 
• Footpaths around the dwellings - Paving   

 
(vi) The additional information has been reviewed by the Council’s Drainage Engineer. 

Overall, the Drainage Engineer concludes that the drainage proposal does appear to 
be workable but this would require full details and assessment. On this basis, a a 
pre-commencement condition has been be imposed (see Condition 18 and 19 below).  
 

(vii) In particular, the Drainage Engineer raises the following points (where applicable, 
further updates on these points will be provided at the meeting): 

• The site will require two private pumping stations due to the elevation 
differences across the site; 

• Finished Floor Level (FFL) of Plot 3 requires clarification (59.9m appears to be 
incorrect, indicating over 1m above surrounding ground and adjacent to Plot 2 
FFL (58.8); 

• Details of highway access will be required to demonstrate that the surface 
water from the highway is unable to enter the site;  

• Further clarification of hard surfaces will be required; 
• If the pump system should fail the design of the hard surfaces will be required 

to compensate the risk. 

(viii) A revised consultation period has been carried out with neighbour notification letters 
sent out 7th July 2022 
 

Page 13



 

 

(ix) One additional objection has been received in addition to those reported at section 6 of 
the original report:   

 
• Further concerns over the removal of trees, drainage and sewage – [Officer 

comments: Additional information has been submitted and is consider 
sufficient that a condition can be attached if planning permission is granted]   

 
• Section 5.3 Officers Committee Report “Surrey Heath Wildlife Trust required 

demonstration of biodiversity net gain”. This has not been demonstrated. 
[Officer comments: Section 7.6 of Committee report address this] 

 
• Section 7.3 Officers Committee Report “Impact on the character and 

appearance of the areas” Over development and appropriateness [Officer 
comments: Section 7.3 of Committee report address impact on the character of 
the area] 

 
• Parking concerns lack of visitors parking spaces [Officer comments: Section 

7.5.2 of the Committee report address the proposal meets the required parking 
standards and therefore in officer view no objection can be raised].  

 
• Light – [Officer comments Section 7.4.6 address the impact of Plot 3 on 

neighbour at Sandlewood]  
 

• Fails Surrey Heath Residential Design Guide (RDG) – [Officer comments: The 
report outlines why the proposal complies with the RDG particularly section 7.3 
and 7.4]  

 
• Shred spaces: Principle 6.3 of the RDG - Long stretches of surface with no 

refuge areas for vulnerable road users should be avoided. [Officer comments 
supporting text in the RDG paragraph 6.9 Shared spaces are streets and areas 
of public realm in which all uses have equal status. They involve the 
introduction of features which influence driver behaviour to reduce vehicle 
speeds and create places that encourage a high level of social interaction 
between residents. They work best in short residential streets such as mews, 
cul de sacs and rural lanes. As such the proposal is an access road to service 2 
additional dwellings and therefore consider acceptable.] 

 
• Objection that plot 1’s permitted development have not been removed. [Officer 

comments: Due to plot 1 being replacement dwelling and is of similar size of 
the existing it is not consider reasonable to removed permitted development 
from this plot.]  

 
 
(x) In conclusion, subject to the additional conditions 18 and 19 below and amendments to 

condition 2 (i.e. to update the drawings to include the drainage information), the 
application is recommended for approval as per the original recommendation.   
 

Amended condition 2 
 

The proposed development shall be built in accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
21.002.E(PA) 021 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.E(PA) 022 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
21.002.E(PA) 023 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.E(PA) 024 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 001 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
21.002.L(PA) 010 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 011 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 015 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 

Page 14



 

 

21.002.L(PA) 016 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.L(PA) 017 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
21.002.S(PA) 030 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
9000 P02 Received: 20.07.2022 
9100 P01 Received: 20.07.2022 
SD20569-01-A Received: 20.07.2022 
 
unless the prior written approval has been obtained from the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning and as 
advised in ID.17a of the Planning Practice Guidance. 

 
New condition 18  

 
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of a surface 
water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with 
the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS. The required drainage details shall include:  
  
 a) Detailed design drawings indicating the location of all new or 
affected drainage systems. Drawings to include annotations for all drainage 
assets,  pipe diameters, surface and invert levels. Representative cross-sections 
required to show profile along access road and across porous construction areas. 
  
 b) Details of how drainage systems will be protected during construction and how 
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before the 
drainage system is operational.  
  
 c) Details of the drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes 
for all drainage systems. Details to outline responsibility for ongoing costs associated 
with pumped drainage systems (electricity supply, preventative maintenance and 
mechanical/electrical servicing). Location details of pump controls required. Pump 
system to maintain an external visual indicator of pump or power failure. All future 
responsibilities to be clearly detailed for any associated surface water assets and 
drainage systems, including the retention of any porous surfaces or sub-base 
construction. 
  
 d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 
during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected. 
  
Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards 
for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to 
accord with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the NPPF. 

 
New condition 19 

  
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of a foul water 
drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority. This shall include: 
  

• Details of the foul drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes 
for all shared drainage systems required;  

• Details to outline the responsibility for ongoing costs associated with pumped drainage 
systems (electricity supply, preventative maintenance and mechanical/electrical 
servicing).  

Page 15



 

 

• All future responsibilities to be clearly detailed with a process to follow in the event of 
pump failure. The location details of pump controls shall be provided and a pump 
system to maintain an external visual indicator of pump or power failure. 
 
Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards 
for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to 
accord with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the NPPF. 
 
 
 
 

 
ORIGINAL COMMITTEE REPORT PROVIDED TO THE PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ON 9TH AUGUST  - DEFERRED  
 
This application would normally be determined under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
However, it has been called-in by Cllr Valerie White due to concerns of over development of 
the site, height, bulk and mass, overbearing, impact on privacy of neighbours and highway 
issues.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT, subject to conditions 
 
1.0 SUMMARY   

 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for demolition of existing dwelling and all 

associated buildings and structures and erection of 3 detached three bedroom dwellings 
with associated car parking, refuse storage and collection point and landscaping.  
 

1.2 The principle of the development would be considered acceptable. For the reasoning 
explained in this report, the proposal is considered to relate to the surrounding area, 
acceptable in terms of residential impact, highway safety, impact on the Thames Basin 
Heath SPA and ecology. The proposal is recommended for approval, subject to planning 
conditions.  
 

 
2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
2.1 The site consists of a fire damaged detached two storey dwelling located within the 

settlement area of Bagshot. The application plot is “L” shaped. The land levels change on 
the site and the land slopes downwards towards the south, or to the rear of the site.  
 

2.2 The surrounding development is residential, mainly detached dwellings of varying plot 
sizes. To the east and west are residential gardens, with the rear grounds of Queen Anne 
House (a Grade II Listed Building) backing onto the western boundary and with the rear 
gardens of four detached dwellings, perpendicular to the western boundary. To the south of 
the site is a block of flats (Hartdene Court).  
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT HISTORY 

 
3.1 20/0807/FFU  Erection of part first floor part two storey side and front extension,  part 

single part two storey rear extension and raising the roof to provide loft 
accommodation. Withdrawn 
 
 
 

 

Page 16



 

 

4.0 THE PROPOSAL 
 

4.1 Full planning permission is sought for the demolition of existing dwelling and all associated 
buildings and structures and erection of 3 detached three bedroom dwellings with 
associated car parking, refuse storage and collection point and landscaping. 
 

4.2 Plot 1 (the dwelling facing Station Road) would be of a traditional design with hipped roof 
over and front gable projection. The detached dwelling would be set back from the highway 
by approximately 21m, set off the boundary 1.3m with neighbour at Sandlewood and 5m to 
the western boundary. The dwelling would have a height of 7.5m and eaves height approx. 
5m, a total depth of approximately 13.2m including the single storey rear and front gable 
projections and have a width of approximately 8.3 m. The dwelling would have an internal 
floor space of approximately 133sqm and rear garden of approximately 195sqm.  
 

4.3 Plot 2 and 3 would be located to the rear of the site. Plot 2 would be located 2.9m, from the 
western boundary and there would be separation distance of 3.8m to the plot 3. Plot 3 
would be located 4.3m from the eastern boundary.   
 

4.4 Plot 2 would have an attached garage. The dwelling would be of a traditional design with 
hipped roof over and front half dormer detailing. The dwelling would have a maximum 
height of 8.2m and eaves height of 5m. The attached garage would have a height of 5.3m. 
The dwelling would have a width of approximately 9.8m and depth of approximately 11.9m. 
The dwelling would have an internal floor space of approximately 141sqm including the 
attached garage and rear garden of approximately 141sqm. 
 

4.5 Plot 3 would be of a traditional design with hipped roof over and front half dormer detailing. 
The dwelling would have a maximum height of 8.2m and eaves height of 5m. The dwelling 
would have a width of approximately 9.8m and depth of approximately 11.9m. The dwelling 
would have an internal floor space of approximately 111sqm and rear garden of 
approximately 182sqm. 
 

4.6 During the course of the application amended plans were received to reduce the number of 
units to the rear from 3 to 2. 
 

4.7 The proposal would include an access road to the western boundary which serve the three 
plots. There is an area of hardstanding in front of plot 2 which provides the turning head of 
vehicles.  
 
Plot 1 – would be provided with two off street parking spaces  
Plot 2 – would be provided with 2 off street parking spaces one of these would be included 
within the garage  
Plot 3 – would be provided with 2 off street parking spaces  
 

4.8 The proposal includes a waste collection point adjacent to the western boundary.    
 

4.9 In support of the planning application the following documents were submitted a Design 
and Access Statement, Transport statement, Arboricultural Report and a Ecology Report.  
 

 
5.0 CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

 
5.1 County Highways 

Authority 
Raises no objection subject to conditions. See Annex A for a copy of 
their comments. 
 

5.2 Joint Waste 
Solutions 

As per the agreed terms, fees and charges of the Council, developers 
are advise to purchase the bins on behalf of the residents prior to 
occupancy.  Maximum pulling distance (distance from presentation  
collection point) of 25m for the two wheeled bins.  
Confirmed that collection point is within maximum pulling distance.  

Page 17



 

 

 
5.3 Surrey Wildlife 

Trust 
Recommends a badger survey to check for new setts prior to 
commencement, a precautionary reptile method of working and 
clarification on the bat mitigation prior to determination. Further details 
were submitted and no objection was raised. SWT also requires 
demonstration of biodiversity net gain. 
 

5.4 Windlesham 
Parish Council 

Objected to the original and revised proposal due to concerns of over 
development of the site  due to the height, bulk and mass and impact on 
residents’ privacy levels. Also concerns with highways and flooding 
issues.  
 

5.5 Arboricultural 
Officer  

No objection subject to condition.  

 
6.0 REPRESENTATION 

 
6.1 A total of 85 individual letters were sent to surrounding properties on 2rd November 2021 

and re-consultation was carried out 8th April 2022. At the time of preparation of this report 
21 letters of representation have been received with 10 objections and 1 support 
summarised below. Overall in the main the objection letters don’t object to the 
redevelopment of existing dwelling (Replacement dwelling of Solstrand):   
 

• Neighbours will be surrounded by buildings due to the development taking place at 
Queen Anne house [Officer comment: Not a material planning consideration] 
 

• Demolishing the current property will dangerous as the building sits higher than 
neighbours to the west concerns property will be damaged during the construction 
[Officer comment: There are concerns that neighbouring properties would be 
damaged during the demolition of the existing dwelling. However, this is not a 
material planning consideration and is a civil matter between relevant parties with 
the Council unable to legally intervene] 

 
• Additional traffic noise at the back of the neighbours to the west [Officer comment: 

Please refer to section 7.4] 
 

• The dwelling to the rear would be overbearing to neighbours [Officer comment: 
Please refer to section 7.3] 

• Impact of the character of the area and over development of the site [Officer 
comment: Please refer to to section 7.3] 

• Impact on privacy and loss of light to Sandlewood [Officer comment: Please refer to 
section 7.4] 
 

• Lack of appropriate screening or details of planting tree heights or types [Officer 
comment: Please refer to paragraph 7.3.10] 
 

• Highway safety issues parking, width of the access road and width restriction 
[Officer comment: Please refer to section 7.5]  
 

• Backland development fails 6.2, 6.4, 7.3.1 and 7.3.2 of the Surrey Design Guide 
[Officer comment: Regard has been had to the Council’s Residential Design Guide] 
 

• Construction phase details are required [Officer comment: Please refer to section 
7.5] 
 

 

Page 18



 

 

 
• Highway and access including the amount of parking and hard standing that would 

have to be accommodated as well as access to the site being inadequate as it sites 
next to the traffic calming measure. [Officer comment: Please refer to section 7.5] 

• Possibility that 12 bins would be on the pavement on Station Road [Officer 
comment: Please refer to section 7.8] 

• Increase in flooding and concerns over drainage [Officer comment: Please refer to 
section 7.8] 

• Does not appear there is safe access for emergency vehicles [Officer comment: 
The local authority building control department or approved inspector is the lead 
authority and responsible for ensuring compliance with the building regulations]. 

• Removal of number trees prior to the application being submitted [Officer comment: 
Not a material planning consideration, the trees are not protected] 
 

6.2 There has been 1 letter of support summarised below:  

• Application appears to make good use of the oversized garden land, within the 
settlement and with consideration of standing to surrounding properties 

• Also provision of new semi-detached houses is much needed in an area abundant 
with retirement flats   

 
 
7.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATION 

 
7.1 The application site is located within the defined settlement boundary, as set out in the 

Proposals Map included in the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
Document 2012 (CSDMP). For this proposed development, consideration is given to 
Policy DM9 and DM11 of the CSDMP, guidance within The Residential Design Guide 
(RDG) Supplementary Planning Document 2017 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF).  
 

7.1.2 The main issues to be considered within this application are:   
 

• Principle of development  
• Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and host dwelling 

(including trees) 
• Impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties. 
• Impact on highway safety  
• Impact on ecology  
• Impact on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
• Other matters (including flooding) 

 
7.2 Principle of development  

 
7.2.1 In line with paragraph 11 of the NPPF there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. The site lies in a relatively sustainable location, within the urban settlement 
and within walking distance of Bagshot Train Station and the village centre. The Council’s 
spatial strategy, under Policy CP1 of the CSDMP, explains that there is limited capacity to 
accommodate new development in Bagshot, to be mainly achieved through redevelopment 
of existing sites, and this proposal is consistent with that aim.  
 

7.2.2 The Council is able to demonstrate a Five-Year Housing Land Supply (i.e. 7.2 years), with 
the appropriate buffer included. This is based on the most recent evidence published in the 
Surrey Heath Strategic Land Availability Assessment (2021) and the 
Council’s Five-Year Housing Land Supply Statement (2021). In addition to this, Surrey 

Page 19



 

 

Heath’s result from the most recent Housing Delivery Test measurement (2021) is 132%, 
which is greater than the threshold of 75% as set out in footnote 8 of the NPPF. Therefore, 
the development plan and its policies may be considered up-to-date with regard to 
paragraph 11 of the NPPF. 
 

7.2.3 Subject, therefore, to other material planning considerations, such as the impact on the 
character of the area and neighboring residential amenities, it is considered that the 
proposal would be acceptable in principle and would be in line with the NPPF, and Policy 
CP1 of the CSDMP. 
 

7.3 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 

7.3.1 Consistent with section 12 of the NPPF and the National Design Guide, Policy DM9 of the 
CSDMP promotes high quality design. Development should respect and enhance the 
character of the local environment and be appropriate in scale, materials, massing, bulk 
and density.  
 

7.3.2 The RDG provides further guidance relating to the design of residential developments. 
Principle 6.6 sets out that new residential development will be expected to respond to the 
size, shape and rhythm of surrounding plot layouts. Proposals with plot layouts that are out 
of context with the surrounding character will be resisted. The supporting paragraphs 
advise that plots are important elements in the character of an area. Their sizes, especially 
the widths along a street frontage are key determinants of the rhythm of buildings and 
spaces along a street, how active it will be and the grain of development in an area. 
Principle 7.4 advises that new residential development should reflect the spacing, heights 
and building footprints of existing buildings.  
 

7.3.3 Station Road is characterised by mainly detached dwellings with varying plot shapes and 
sizes. There is also a small row of terraces located to the east of the application site. In 
addition to this, there is a varied mix of dwellings in terms of their size, style and 
appearance. The dwellings to the north of the highway have a similar building line. The 
dwellings immediate to the east of the application site have a staggered building line, then 
there is a small row of terraces.  
 

7.3.4 The proposal comprises of a detached dwelling to the front of the site, which would replace 
the existing dwelling, and two additional dwellings located to the rear of the site. Whilst 
back-land development can be inappropriate, this is dependent upon the existing pattern of 
development within the vicinity and the immediate context. Although there are no examples 
of a secondary tier of development elsewhere along Station Road, it is noted that to the rear 
(south) of the application site is a block of flats, to the east of the application site the plot 
sizes reduce in width and depth, and to the west is a mixture with rear gardens along Bridge 
Road perpendicular to the site. Given this context, two plots to the rear would not form poor 
relationships with the rhythm of surrounding properties and would not appear as an 
isolated form of development. The topography of the land, with the dwellings at the rear 
being notably lower than Station Road frontage, would further assist with this integration. 
Whilst the introduction  of the plots to the rear would be some of the smallest in depth within 
the surrounding area, there is a mixture of the plot sizes in terms of the width and depth 
within the surrounding area.  
 

7.3.5 Paragraph 6.16 of the RDG sets out that plot widths along the street frontage are key 
determinants of the rhythm of buildings and spaces along the street. The proposed access 
road would serve the three plots. While the existing vehicular access would be altered, it 
would not introduce an additional vehicular access. There would be an increase in hard 
standing to the front, however, visually due to the existing situation the plot width along the 
street scene is not considered to be significantly visually different to the current situation as 
to disrupt plot rhythms and would not be out of context within the surrounding area. 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

 

7.3.6 During the course of the application amended plans were received to reduce the number of 
units to the rear. This reduction in units and level of the built form has increased the spacing 
around the buildings. The level of spaciousness retained on the site is considered 
acceptable. The gaps retained to the sites boundaries are considered sufficient, and would 
not appear out of place for the general vicinity. The quantum of built form on the site would 
therefore not appear cramped or be over development.  
 

7.3.7 The frontage plot would reflect the heights of other dwellings along Station Road. As the 
land levels decrease from north to south, the heights of the dwellings to the rear can be 
accommodated on site without being overly visible from Station Road. The proposed 
dwellings to the rear would be visible from the Hart Dene Court, however, they would be 
viewed within the context of the flats and neighbour at Windlecot and they would not over 
dominate these neighbours. As such the scale and massing of the proposal would not be 
obtrusive in the locality or the existing street scene.  
 

7.3.8 The proposed access track would run down the western boundary adjacent to the rear 
gardens of Bridge Road. The access track would provide an increase separation distance 
from the rear boundaries and flank elevation of plot 1 compared to the existing situation. 
While it is noted that vehicles could be visible when driving down the access track it not 
considered there would be high level of vehicle movements to the resulting 2 plots to the 
rear of the site that would result in significantly visually harm to the character of the area 
when viewed from these neighbours rear gardens.  
 

7.3.9 The three dwellings would be of different sizes with similar shapes and it is considered that 
these would respond well to their varied surrounding context. Internally, there would be an 
area laid to hardstanding, however this covers the space needed for turning and access 
only. The proposed site plan shows that planting would be provided within the site and on 
its boundaries to soften the built form and it is therefore recommended that a landscape 
scheme is secured by planning condition. The architectural design of the proposed 
dwellings is considered to reflect the character of surrounding properties and the finished in 
brick and render would be acceptable and no concerns are raised. A planning condition 
has been added to this recommendation requiring these details to be submitted prior to any 
works above slab level.  
 

7.3.10 The Planning Statement outlines that the site has been cleared. As part of the application 
an arboricultural report has been submitted which has been reviewed by the Council’s 
Arboricultural Officer. It is considered that while no objection is raised there appears to be 
limited scope for replanting within the site, but the plans indicate replanting on the road 
frontage. It is considered reasonable and necessary to attach a condition to require a 
landscaping scheme to be submitted for approval to the Council and the protection of any 
retained trees on site.  
 

7.3.11 Noting the size of the rear plots, size of the residential gardens and the surrounding 
character of the area, it is considered reasonable and necessary to remove permitted 
development rights for householder developments (house extensions and outbuildings etc) 
to plots 2 and 3 only to allow the Council control over such developments at the site in the 
future.  
 

7.3.12 In summary, it is considered that the proposal would harmonise satisfactorily into its 
context, in accordance with Policy DM9 of the CSDMP, and principles 6.6 and 7.4 of the 
RDG.   

  
7.4 Impact on residential amenity 

 
7.4.1 Policy DM9 of the CSDMP 2012 states that development should respect the amenities of 

the adjoining properties and uses. Principles 8.1 and 8.3 of the RDG advise that the new 
residential development should respect residential amenities of both neighbours and future 
occupiers in terms of privacy and light loss. Principle 8.2 goes on to say that all habitable 
rooms in new residential development should be provided with appropriate outlook. 

Page 21



 

 

Principle 7.6 talks about the internal space standards, whereas Principle 8.4, 8.5 and 8.6 
set out the outdoor amenity space.  
 

 Neighbouring properties  
 

7.4.3 The application site is surrounded by residential properties. In terms of plot 1 (replacement 
dwelling to the front of the site) would be located in a similar location to the existing 
dwelling. The neighbour to the east Sandlewood is located on slightly higher land level. The 
two storey front gabled projection is located to the western elevation and therefore is a 
sufficient distance from the common boundary. The two storey rear elevation would be 
similar to this neighbour and the single storey element would not extend beyond this 
neighbour’s rear elevation. The resulting ridge height would increase and the proposed 
dwelling would be of similar height to the neighbour at Sandlewood. The dwelling would be 
located 1.3m from the common boundary with the neighbour Sandlewood and 5m from the 
boundary with neighbours at Plot one and Casa Mia (Fronting Bridge Road). Compared to 
the existing dwelling the proposed dwelling has a reduced width to allow space for the 
access track to the plots to the rear. As such the proposed dwelling flank elevation is a 
greater distance from neighbours at Plot 1 and Casa Mia which increases the separation 
distance. The neighbours to the north are separated by the highway. It is considered that 
the proposed dwelling would not adversely impact on the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties in terms of appearing overbearing, nor result in an unacceptable loss of light.   
 

7.4.4 Concerns have been raised over the potential noise impact that the proposed vehicular 
access would have on the rear gardens of the neighbours. There are two units located to 
the rear as such the vehicular movements on the access track would be limited. The 
neighbour at Plot One has green houses to the rear boundary and the neighbour at Casa 
Mia has a large outbuilding located on the rear boundary.  Therefore, due to the existing 
built form on the common boundary, the limited vehicle movements,  and the depth of the 
rear gardens, on balance the proposal would not generate a significant increase in noise 
levels from vehicle movements that would be detrimental to neighbouring properties.  
 

7.4.5 The introduction of vehicular access and new dwellings could result in increased light 
pollution to neighbouring properties. As mentioned above there are two units located to the 
rear of the site which result in net increase of 2 on the site. This would result in limited 
number of comings and goings as a result it is not considered to generate unacceptable 
level of light pollution. However, it is considered reasonable and necessary to attach a 
condition requiring details of any external lighting to be installed to protected the amenities 
of the neighbouring properties.  
 

7.4.6 In terms of the plots located to the rear of the site, Plot 3 is located to the rear of 
Sandlewood. The RDG sets out that back-to-back distances should be a minimum of 20m. 
The proposed front elevation of the dwelling is located approximately 32.3m from the rear 
elevation of this neighbour. The land levels also decrease such that the proposed dwellings 
would be located on lower land level than the neighbouring properties to the north. As such 
this distance would be sufficient to mitigate against overbearing and over shadowing 
impacts to this neighbour. While that this dwelling would be on higher than level than this 
neighbour, due to the distance it is not considered there would be unacceptable levels of 
overlooking.  
 

7.4.7 Plot 2’s flank two storey elevation would be located 24.9m from the neighbour at Windlecot, 
Bridge Road’s rear elevation. As mentioned above the RDG sets out that back-to-back 
distances should be a minimum of 20m. For two storey rear to side relationships it may be 
possible to reduce the separation distance to 15m. The applicant has submitted a cross 
section which shows that the proposed dwelling would be at a slighter higher land level and 
the neighbour at Windlecot. Further they have drawn on the 25 degree vertical angle from a 
point 2m above the floor at this neighbour which shows this angled would not be breached. 
As such the distance between the two properties would be above the guidance and would 
be sufficient to mitigate against overbearing and over shadowing impacts to this neighbour.  
 

Page 22



 

 

7.4.8 Plot’s 2 and 3 rear elevation would face towards the flats. Within the block of flats northern 
elevation facing the application site there are not any habitable windows. The proposed 
arrangement would not be considered to give rise to overlooking impacts.  
 

7.4.9 In terms of overlooking as mentioned above the land levels slope downwards in the site. 
Plot 1 to the front of the site would result in similar situation to the existing. However, within 
the proposal are first floor windows within the flank elevation. It is considered appropriate to 
attach a condition to any consent requiring these windows to be obscure glazed and top 
level opening only to protect the privacy of these neighbours. The amenity area would be 
similar to the existing. It is therefore considered that plot 1 would not result in unacceptable 
levels of overlooking to neighbouring properties.  
 

7.4.10 Plots 2 and 3 are located at the rear of the site which is on a lower land level. The 
neighbours to the west adjacent to the plot boundaries are on a more similar land level 
which is shown in the cross section. Plot 2 has the proposed attached garage located 
adjacent to the boundary with neighbour at Windlecot which provides additional screening. 
There are no windows proposed in the western flank elevation of plot 2 which would face 
towards this neighbour. A condition would be attached to any planning permission granted 
to secure details of boundary fencing. This would be considered sufficient to mitigate any 
unacceptable levels of overlooking to neighbouring properties.   
 

 Future occupiers of the proposed development  
 

7.4.11 In considering the proposed residential amenities of the future occupiers of the new 
dwellings, the internal floor space would comply with the recommendation contained in the 
Nationally Described Space Standards. Plot 1 would have a rear garden size of 
approximately 195sqm, Plot 2 approximately 141sqm and Plot 3 approximately 182sqm. 
The proposed garden spaces would comply with the Principle 8.4 of the RDG which sets 
out the predominantly south facing gardens should have an area of 55sqm. All habitable 
rooms would be provided with adequate outlook.  
 

7.4.12 Plots 2 and 3 would have similar relationship with Plot 1, as Plot 3’s relationship with 
Sandlewood. As such this distance would be sufficient to mitigate against overbearing and 
overshadowing impacts to the future occupiers.  
 

7.4.13 Plot 2 and 3 rear elevation would face towards the flats. As mentioned above the RDG sets 
out that back-to-back distances should be a minimum of 20m. For two storey rear to side 
relationships it may be possible to reduce the separation distance to 15m. The two storey 
distance would range from approximately 12.5m to 18.6m. The applicant has submitted a 
cross section which shows block of flats are on a lower land level than the proposed 
dwellings. Further they have drawn on the 25 degrees vertical angle from point 2m above 
the floor at this neighbour which shows this angled would not be breached. As such while at 
the closest point the distance is below 15m due to the land levels differences and light 
angles are not breached this distance would be sufficient to mitigate against overbearing 
and overshadowing impacts to the future occupiers. 
 

7.4.14 It is therefore considered that the proposal will not adversely affect the residential 
amenities of adjacent properties or future occupies in terms of overdominance, 
obtrusiveness, loss of light or overlooking. As such, the proposal would be in accordance 
with Policy DM9 of the CSDMP and the RDG. 
 

7.5 Highway impacts  
 

7.5.1 Policy DM11 (Traffic Management and Highway Safety) states that development which 
would adversely impact the safe and efficient flow of traffic movement on the highway 
network will not be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that measures to reduce and 
mitigate such impacts to acceptable levels can be implemented. 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

7.5.2 The proposed development would require 6 spaces to be provided in line with ‘Vehicular 
and Cycle Parking Guidance (2018)’, the proposal would comply with the requirements.  
 

7.5.3 The proposal previously moved the vehicular access off Station Road. The County 
Highway Authority (CHA) has been consulted and initially expressed concerns for the 
proposed development regarding the existing give-way markings associated with the road 
narrowing on Station Road which under existing proposed conditions would continue to 
overlap a short section of the access. These concerns stemmed from highway safety risks 
which could occur in the likely event that a westbound vehicle was waiting at the give-way 
markings and blocking access to the development. In view of the proposed uplift in 
vehicular trip movements at this point, it was the CHA's view that this issue would be 
exacerbated by the development. However, the applicant has since submitted amended 
plans in order to show the site access in its original position, albeit slightly narrowed, 
thereby avoiding the existing conflict with the give-way markings. Therefore, CHA removed 
their objection.  
 

7.5.4 Sufficient space will be provided within the site for vehicles to turn so they are able to enter 
and leave in forward gear, and this will be especially important in view of the site access 
proximity to the adjacent road narrowing and associated give-way markings. It is therefore 
considered that vehicles including deliveries would be able to access site and turn safety. 
Due to the location of the waste collection point within 25m of the highway the refuse 
vehicle would not need to access the site.  
 

7.5.5 Therefore, there are no objections to the proposal on highway safety, policy or capacity 
grounds. The CHA has recommended planning conditions requiring modified access, 
construction transport management plan along with provision of electric vehicle charge 
sockets. The proposed off-street parking is considered sufficient for the three bedroom 
dwelling proposed. The Local Planning Authority is therefore satisfied that the proposal 
would not conflict with the aims of Policy DM11.   

7.6 Ecology impacts  
 

7.6.1 Policy CP14A of the CSDMP states that the Council will seek to conserve and enhance 
biodiversity within Surrey Heath. Where appropriate, new development will be required to 
contribute to the protection, management and enhancement of biodiversity.  
 

7.6.2 Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) have reviewed the AAe Environmental Consultants report 
dated 28th May 2021. While there are no active badger setts within the site there are likely 
some nearby. It is recommended that immediately prior to the start of development works a 
survey of the site by an appropriately qualified and experienced ecologist should be 
undertaken within the proposed development boundary and a 30m buffer, to search for any 
new badger setts. If any badger activity is detected a suitable course of action shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA to prevent harm to this species. A planning 
condition has been added to this recommendation requiring these details. A precautionary 
condition will also be imposed with respect of the presence of reptiles.  
 

7.6.3 It was considered by SWT that insufficient information has been provided to conclude the 
likely absence of roosting bats. Further information was submitted and on review SWT are 
satisfied with the justification provided with regard to the bats. It is therefore considered that 
the protected species have been given due regard and no objection is raised. The Trust 
also goes onto say that the applicant should ensure that the proposed development will 
result in no net increase in external artificial lighting at primary bat foraging and commuting 
routes across the development site. 
 

7.6.4 The SWT has requested that biodiversity net gain is achieved on the site. However, the 
biodiversity net gain provisions of the Environment Act 2021 have not yet come into force, 
as secondary legislation has not yet been made. Given therefore that the 10% is not yet 
planning policy, it is not considered reasonable to enforce. Policy CP14A requires 
enhancement of biodiversity, The proposed development would offer opportunities to 

Page 24



 

 

restore or enhance biodiversity and such measures will assist the LPA in meeting the 
above obligation and will also help offset any localised harm to biodiversity caused by the 
development process. Consistent with SWT advice, a condition can therefore be imposed 
to secure this. Details of biodiversity enhancements are set out in ‘Conclusions and 
Recommendations’ section of the above mentioned report including landscape planting of 
known benefit to wildlife, fencing with gaps to allow animals to pass underneath and 
provision of bat and bird boxes. A scheme of ecological enhancements can be secured via 
a condition which would be reasonable and necessary in the event that permission is 
granted. 
 

7.7 Impact on Thames Basin Heaths SPA 
 

7.7.1 Policy CP14B of the CSDMP states that the Council will only permit development where it 
is satisfied that this will not give rise to likely significant adverse effect upon the integrity of 
the Special Protection Area (SPA) and Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) sited within 
the Borough. Furthermore, it states that no new net residential development will be 
permitted within 400m of the SPA. Proposals for all new net residential development 
elsewhere in the Borough should provide or contribute towards the provision of SANGs and 
shall also contribute toward strategic access management and monitoring (SAMM) 
measures. 
 

7.7.2 The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy (TBHSPAAS) SPD 
(2019) identifies Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) within the Borough 
and advises that the impact of residential developments on the SPA can be mitigated by 
providing a financial contribution towards SANGS. 
 

7.7.3 The proposed development would lie within the 5km buffer of the Thames Basin Heaths 
SPA. Provided that sufficient SANG capacity is available in the Borough, it can be allocated 
to minor development proposals and the financial contribution towards SANG is now 
collected as a part of CIL. There is currently sufficient SANG available and this 
development would be CIL liable, so a contribution would be payable on commencement of 
development. 
 

7.7.4 Following an Executive resolution which came into effect on 1 August 2019, due to the 
currently limited capacity available for public SANGs in parts of the Borough, applications 
for development which reduce SANG capacity, as in the case of this application will be valid 
for one year (rather than three years).   
 

7.7.5 The development would also be liable for a contribution towards SAMM (Strategic Access 
Monitoring and Maintenance) of the SANG, which is a payment separate and would 
depend on the sizes of the units proposed. This proposal is liable for a SAMM payment of 
£1,261.85 which has been paid been paid by the applicant.  
 

7.8 Other matters 
 

7.8.1 As the proposed development would involve the provision of an additional residential unit 
the development would be CIL liable. The site falls within the Eastern Charging Zone, for 
which the charge is £220 per m², for residential development that does not provide its own 
SANG. As such, an informative has been added to this recommendation, should planning 
permission be granted for the proposal. It is therefore considered that the proposal would 
be in accordance with Policy CP12 of the CSDMP. 
 

7.8.2 Policy DM10 states that development proposal should at least be risk neutral. Flood 
resilient and resistant design, as well appropriate mitigation and adaption can be 
implemented so that the level of flood risk is reduced to acceptable levels. The application 
site is situated within Flood Zone 1 where residential use is considered to be appropriate. 
The Planning Statement advise that the neighbour to the west is partly within the flood zone 
2 and the neighbours to the south are within flood zone 2 and 3, the application site is 
elevated above this. It is considered necessary that detailed drainage strategy should be 

Page 25



 

 

developed following the grant of planning permission and this can be achieved to ensure 
the requirements of Policy DM10 of the CSDMP are met. A planning condition has been 
added to this recommendation requiring the provision of this strategy prior to commencing 
works on site.  
 

7.8.3 Policy CP2 of the CSDMP indicates that development will be required to provide 
measurements to improve energy efficiencies and sustainability. The Design and Access 
Statement sets out the energy conservation to support the application. The measures 
include thermal requirements, at least 75% internal light fitting will be energy efficient, water 
efficiency measurements, water butts will be installed and pre-installed appliances will be A 
or A+ rated for energy efficiency. It is considered necessary to secure these details through 
a condition.  
 

7.8.4 The Council’s Joint Waste Solutions have confirmed that there is maximum pulling distance 
from the presentation of collection point of 25m for two wheeled bins. The proposed waste 
collection point is located 25m from the highway and therefore meets this requirement and 
no objection is raised.  
 

 
8.0 POSITIVE/PROACTIVE WORKING AND PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

 
8.1 In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a positive, creative 

and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of paragraphs 38-41 of the NPPF.  
This included 1 or more of the following: 
  

 a) Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process to advise 
progress, timescale or recommendation. 

b) Have negotiated amendments to the scheme to resolve identified problems with the 
proposal and to seek to foster sustainable development 
  

8.2 Under the Equalities Act 2010 the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment or victimisation of persons by reason of age, disability, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex and sexual orientation. This planning application has been 
processed and assessed with due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty. The proposal 
is not considered to conflict with this duty. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an adverse impact on 

the character and appearance of the host dwelling or local area, on the amenities of the 
adjoining residents, or on highway safety, subject to the recommended conditions. 
Therefore, the proposal complies with the CSDMP, the RDG and the NPPF.  

 
10.0   RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within one year of the date of this 

permission. 
  
 Reason: To prevent an accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions and in 

accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 
by Section 51(1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

 

 2. The proposed development shall be built in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
 21.002.E(PA) 021 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.E(PA) 022 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
 21.002.E(PA) 023 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.E(PA) 024 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.L(PA) 001 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
 21.002.L(PA) 010 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.L(PA) 011 Rev PA3 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.L(PA) 015 Rev PA1 Received 27.10.2021 
 21.002.L(PA) 016 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.L(PA) 017 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 21.002.S(PA) 030 Rev PA2 Received 06.04.2022 
 9000 P02 Received: 20.07.2022 
 9100 P01 Received: 20.07.2022 
 SD20569-01-A Received: 20.07.2022 
  
 unless the prior written approval has been obtained from the Local Planning Authority. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning and as 

advised in ID.17a of the Planning Practice Guidance. 
  
 
 3. No external facing materials shall be used on or in the development hereby approved 

until samples and details of them have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Once approved, the development shall be carried out 
using only the agreed materials. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of visual amenities of the area and to accord with Policy DM9 

of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012. 
 
 4. Prior to completion or first occupation of the development hereby approved, whichever 

is the sooner; full details of all proposed tree planting shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This will include hard surfaces, 
walls, fences, access features, the existing trees and hedges to be retained, planting 
and maintenance specifications, including cross-section drawings, use of guards or 
other protective measures and confirmation of location, species and sizes, nursery 
stock type, supplier and defect period.  

  
 All tree planting shall be carried out in accordance with those details and at those 

times. Any trees that are found to be dead, dying, severely damaged or diseased 
within five years of the completion of the building works OR five years following the 
completion of the landscaping scheme (whichever is later), shall be replaced in the 
next planting season by specimens of similar size and species in the first suitable 
planting season. 

  
 Reason: To preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in accordance 

with Policy DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management 
Policies 2012. 

 
 5. No foundations or ground floor slabs shall be constructed on site until details of the 

proposed finished ground floor slab levels of all building(s) and the finished ground 
levels of the site including roads, private drives, etc. in relation to the existing ground 
levels of the site and adjoining land, (measured from a recognised datum point) have 
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing. Once 
approved, the development shall be built in accordance with the approved details. 

  

Page 27



 

 

 Reason: In the interests of the visual and residential amenities enjoyed by 
neighbouring occupiers and the occupiers of the buildings hereby approved in 
accordance with Policy DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies 2012. 

 
 6. The protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified shall be 

undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any 
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and thereafter 
maintained until the completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery 
and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site. 

  
 o Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this 

condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any 
excavation be made, the protective fencing as proposed and shall be retained intact, 
for the full duration of the development hereby approved and shall not be removed or 
repositioned without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 o Protective fencing shall be retained intact for the full duration of the development 

hereby approved and shall not be removed or repositioned without the prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 o All tree felling and pruning works shall be carried out in full accordance with the 

approved specification and the requirements of British Standard 3998: 2010 - 
Recommendations for Tree Works. No excavations for services, storage of materials 
or machinery, parking of vehicles, deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, or disposal of 
liquids shall take place within any area designated as being fenced off or otherwise 
protected in the approved protection scheme. 

  
 o Prior to first occupation, details of the satisfactory written evidence of 

contemporaneous monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed tree specialist 
during construction (where working within RPA is shown) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 o No development or other operations shall take place except in complete accordance 

with the approved tree protection scheme and Arboricultural Method Statement (Ref: 
  
 Reason:  To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and 

surrounding area  and to comply with Policy DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies 2012. 

 
 7. Before the first occupation of the development hereby approved all first floor windows 

in the side elevation of plot 1, as well as first floor windows in the eastern elevation of 
plot 2 facing plot 3, as well as first floor windows in the western elevation of plot 3 
facing plot 2, shall be completed in obscure glazing and any opening shall be at high 
level only (greater than 1.7m above finished floor level) and retained as such at all 
times. No additional openings shall be created in these elevations without the prior 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents and to 

accord with Policy DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies 2012. 

 
 8. No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the proposed 

modified vehicular access to Station Road has been constructed and provided with 
visibility zones in accordance with Drawing Number 21.002.L(PA)011 REV PA2 and 
thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept permanently clear of any obstruction over 
600mm high. 

  

Page 28



 

 

 Reason: In order that development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users and to promote sustainable forms of transport in 
accordance with Polices CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 2012 and 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
 9. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, a scheme of ecological 

enhancements shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority to 
ensure an overall net gain in biodiversity will be achieved. The scheme will include all 
the details set out in the conclusions and recommendations AA Environmental Limited 
(AAe). The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.  

  
 Reason: To preserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP14A of the 

Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012. 
 
10. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to 

include details of: 
 (a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
 (b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
 (c) storage of plant and materials 
 (d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details 
shall be implemented during the construction of the development. 

  
 Reason: In order that development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 

inconvenience to other highway users and to promote sustainable forms of transport in 
accordance with Polices CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 2012 and 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
11. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until each of the 

proposed dwellings are provided with a fast-charge Electric Vehicle charging point 
(current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 
Amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained and 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 

  
 Reason: In order that development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 

inconvenience to other highway users and to promote sustainable forms of transport in 
accordance with Polices CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 2012 and 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
12. Relating to Plots 2 and 3 only - Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 Part 1 

Class A, Class B and Class E of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order revoking and re enacting that 
Order) no further extensions or outbuildings shall be erected or undertaken without the 
prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Any development under the Classes stated above undertaken or implemented 

between the date of this decision and the commencement of the development hereby 
approved shall be demolished and all material debris resulting permanently removed 
from the land within one month of the development hereby approved coming into first 
use.   

  
 Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the enlargement, 

improvement or other alterations to the development in the interests of visual and 
residential amenity and to accord with Policy DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies 2012 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 

Page 29



 

 

13. No development shall take until immediately prior to the start of development works, a 
survey of the site by an appropriately qualified and experienced ecologist should be 
undertaken within the proposed development boundary and a 30m buffer, to search for 
any new badger setts. If any badger activity is detected a suitable course of action shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA to prevent harm to this species.  

  
 Reason: To preserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP14A of the 

Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012. 
 
14. Prior to commencement of the development no external lighting shall be installed on 

the site without the Sensitive Lighting Management Plan having first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details 
shall be implemented and retained on site.  

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbours. To preserve and enhance 

biodiversity in accordance with Policy DM9 and CP14A of the Surrey Heath Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012. 

 
15. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space 

has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for the parking 
of vehicles and cycles and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site 
in forward gear. Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be retained and 
maintained for their designated purposes. 

  
 Reason: In order that development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 

inconvenience to other highway users and to promote sustainable forms of transport in 
accordance with Polices CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 2012 and 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
16. Any closed boarded fencing erected on the site shall include holes in the case of with a 

minimum or 20cm x 20cm to allow badger and other mammals to move freely through 
the site. These shall be retained and maintained for their designated purpose in 
perpetuity or if necessary replaced with similar boxes/tubes. 

  
 Reason: To preserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP14A of the 

Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012. 
 
17. Prior to commencement of the development a reptile precautionary method of working 

shall be developed and submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. 
Precautionary working methods should follow best ecological practice. Should any 
reptiles be discovered during construction, works should cease in this area and a 
suitably experienced ecologist contacted. Works will need to proceed in line with the 
advice provided. 

  
 Reason: To preserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP14A of the 

Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012. 
 
18. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of a surface 

water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with 
the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS. The required drainage details shall include:  

   
  a) Detailed design drawings indicating the location of all new or affected drainage 

systems. Drawings to include annotations for all drainage assets,  pipe diameters, 
surface and invert levels. Representative cross-sections required to show profile along 
access road and across porous construction areas. 

   

Page 30



 

 

  b) Details of how drainage systems will be protected during construction and how 
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before the 
drainage system is operational.  

   
  c) Details of the drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for 

all drainage systems. Details to outline responsibility for ongoing costs associated with 
pumped drainage systems (electricity supply, preventative maintenance and 
mechanical/electrical servicing). Location details of pump controls required. Pump 
system to maintain an external visual indicator of pump or power failure. All future 
responsibilities to be clearly detailed for any associated surface water assets and 
drainage systems, including the retention of any porous surfaces or sub-base 
construction. 

   
  d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 

during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected. 
   
 Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards 

for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to 
accord with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the NPPF. 

 
19. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of a foul water 

drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority. 

   
 Details of the foul drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for 

all shared drainage systems required. Details to outline the responsibility for ongoing 
costs associated with pumped drainage systems (electricity supply, preventative 
maintenance and mechanical/electrical servicing). All future responsibilities to be 
clearly detailed with a process to follow in the event of pump failure. Location details of 
pump controls to be provided. Pump system to maintain an external  visual indicator of 
pump or power failure. 

  
 Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards 

for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site and to 
accord with Policy DM10 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the NPPF. 

 
Informative(s) 

 
 
 1. This Decision Notice is a legal document and therefore should be kept in a safe 

place as it may be required if or when selling your home.   A replacement copy can 
be obtained, however, there is a charge for this service. 

 
 2. The applicant is advised that this permission is only pursuant to the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and is advised to contact Building Control with regard 
to the necessary consents applicable under the Building Regulations and the 
effects of legislation under the Building Act 1984. 

 
 3. The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works 

required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may require 
necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road markings, 
highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, highway 
surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street furniture/equipment. 

 
 4. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any 

works on the highway.  The applicant is advised that prior approval must be 
obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any 

Page 31



 

 

footway, footpath, carriageway, or verge to form a vehicle crossover or to install 
dropped kerbs. Please see 

 www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-cro
ssovers-or-dropped-kerbs. 

 
 5. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct the 

public highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or any other device or 
apparatus for which a licence must be sought from the Highway Authority Local 
Highways Service 

 
 6. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from 

the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly 
loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover 
any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and 
prosecutes persistent offenders.  (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149). 

 
 7. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge 

developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of vehicles to 
and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any excess repairs 
compared to normal maintenance costs to the applicant/organisation responsible 
for the damage. 

 
 8. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is 

sufficient to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is in 
place if required.  Please refer to: 
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrast
ructure.html for guidance and further information on charging modes and 
connector types. 

 
 9. The decision has been taken in compliance with paragraphs 38-41 of the NPPF to 

work with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. Further information on 
how this was done can be obtained from the officer's report. 

 
10. Bats: All bats found in Britain are protected under Schedule 8 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981. It is an offence to kill any bats or disturb their roosts. If bats 
are discovered during inspection or subsequent work. Natural England must be 
informed immediately. 

 
11. Construction activities on site have regard to the potential presence of terrestrial 

mammals to ensure that these species do not become trapped in trenches, 
culverts or pipes. All trenches left open overnight should include a means of 
escape for any animals that may fall in. If badger activity is detected, works should 
cease and advice from a suitably experienced ecologist sought to prevent harm to 
this species. 

 
 

Page 32



S
Tel:     E-mail: Chris.Duncan@surreycc.gov.uk

Melissa Turney
SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
SURREY HEATH HOUSE
KNOLL ROAD
CAMBERLEY
GU15 3HD

26 November 2021

Dear Melissa Turney

APPLICATION NO. SU/21/1176
SITE: Solstrand, Station Road, Bagshot, Surrey, GU19 5AS

I refer to the above planning application upon which you have requested our consideration of
the highway and transport issues. Before I am able to provide a full response, please request
the following be provided by the Applicant:

Following a site visit and subsequent review of the planning application, it is noted that the
proposed modified access would be in close proximity to an existing road narrowing  / priority
working, and which could therefore result in a conflict with the give-way markings on the
westbound lane.

Whilst it is recognised that this is an existing arrangement (with the currently positioned access
being similarly close to the road narrowing), the proposals to increase the number of dwellings
served off Station Road at this point, intensifying the vehicular movements at the access, would
therefore require justification as to how this access is proposed to be operated.

Please provide a plan illustrating the existing give-way lines on Station Road, in relation to the
proposed modified access. Secondly, please provide justification as to how the proposed
access arrangements will work, and how the potential conflict between vehicles waiting at the
give-way line and cars accessing/egressing the site will be dealt with.

Thirdly, it is anticipated that there may be a need to re-position the give-way lines in order to
create space and reduce the conflict for vehicles.

It would be useful to see swept-path analysis showing any relevant manoeuvres in order to
justify the safety of the proposed access arrangements.

Page 33

katharines
Typewriter
ANNEX Ai



Please request that the Applicant provides the above amendments/information in sufficient time
so that we may respond before your deadline for determination. Please ensure that the
response to this letter is in writing and all appropriate documentation, as requested, is attached.

Yours Sincerely,

Chris Duncan
Assistant Transport Development Planning Officer

Page 34



s
APPLICATION

NUMBER
SU/21/1176

DEVELOPMENT AFFECTING ROADS
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING GENERAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER 1992

Applicant: Mr Arran Atkinson

Location: Solstrand, Station Road, Bagshot, Surrey, GU19 5AS

Development: Demolition of existing dwelling and all associated buildings and structures and
erection of 2 no. detached three bedroom dwellings and one pair of three
bedroom semi-detached dwellings with associated car parking, refuse storage
and collection point and landscaping.

 Contact        
 Officer

Chris Duncan Consultation
Date

2 November 2021 Response Date 20 December
2021

The proposed development has been considered by THE COUNTY HIGHWAY AUTHORITY who
having assessed the application on safety, capacity and policy grounds, recommends the following
conditions be imposed in any permission granted:

Conditions

1) Modified access

No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the proposed modified vehicular
access to Station Road has been constructed and provided with visibility zones in accordance with
Drawing Number 2021/5918/003 RevP3 and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept
permanently clear of any obstruction over 600mm high.

2) Parking & turning

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space has been laid
out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for the parking of vehicles and cycles
and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the
parking and turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their designated purposes.

3) Construction Transport Management Plan

No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to include
details of:

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials

Page 35

katharines_1
Typewriter
ANNEX Aii



(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved
details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.

4) Electric vehicle charging points

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until each of the proposed
dwellings are provided with a fast-charge Electric Vehicle charging point (current minimum
requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated
supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and thereafter retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason

The above conditions are required in order that the development should not prejudice highway
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to promote sustainable forms of
transport in accordance with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Policy

Policies CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy 2012 and the National Planning Policy
Framework 2021.

Informatives

1) Accommodation works

The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works required by the
above conditions, the County Highway Authority may require necessary accommodation works to
street lights, road signs, road markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway
verges, highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street furniture/equipment.

2) New/Modified Access

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any works on the
highway.  The applicant is advised that prior approval must be obtained from the Highway
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, or verge to form
a vehicle crossover or to install dropped kerbs. Please see
www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-droppe
d-kerbs.

3) Obstructing the Highway

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct the public highway
by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or any other device or apparatus for which a licence must
be sought from the Highway Authority Local Highways Service.

4) Mud on the Highway

The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from the site and
deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly loaded vehicles.  The
Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing,
cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders.  (Highways Act 1980
Sections 131, 148, 149).

Page 36

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs


5) Damage to the highway

Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge developers for damage
caused by excessive weight and movements of vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority
will pass on the cost of any excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

6) Electric vehicle charging

It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is sufficient to meet
future demands and that any power balancing technology is in place if required.  Please refer to:
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
for guidance and further information on charging modes and connector types.

Note for Planning Officer

Please contact the officer shown in the above table if you require additional justification for the
County Highway Authority’s recommendation on this planning application.

Surrey County Council’s ‘Transportation Development Control Good Practice Guide’ provides
information on how the County Council considers highways and transportation matters for
development proposals in Surrey. 

Site specific comment

The CHA initially expressed concerns for the proposed development regarding the existing
give-way markings - associated with the road narrowing - on Station Road which, under proposed
conditions, would continue to overlap a short section of the access. These concerns stemmed
from highway safety risks which could occur in the likely event that a westbound vehicle was
waiting at the give-way markings and blocking access to the development. In view of the proposed
uplift in vehicular trip movements at this point, it was the CHA's view that this issue would be
exacerbated by the development.

However, the Applicant has since amended their plans in order to show the site access in its
original position, albeit slightly narrowed, thereby avoiding the existing conflict with the give-way
markings.

Sufficient space will be provided within the site for vehicles to turn so they are able to enter and
leave in forward gear, and this will be especially important in view of the site access' proximity to
the adjacent road narrowing and associated give-way markings.

The CHA note that there are double yellow lines on both sides of Station Road including either
side of the access, with a single yellow line commencing to the east of the site boundary, and so
these will help to prevent on-street parking from taking place in dangerous locations and protect
users from any highway safety hazards. 

Page 37

http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html


This page is intentionally left blank



PAC 21/1176/FFU Solstrand Station Road Bagshot GU19 5AS 

Site Location Plan  

 

 

Proposed site plan  

 

Page 39



Plot 1 – Front of the site  

 

Plot 2 – Rear of the site  

 

 

Page 40



Plot 3 – Rear of the site  

 

 

Plots 2 and 3  

 

Page 41



Photos  

 

Front of the site  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



View towards the rear of the site -  flats in the back ground  

 

 

 

Page 43



View of the existing dwelling to the rear  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



Views towards the neighbours to the west  

 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



21/1176/FFU
12 May 2022

Planning Applications

Solstrand Station Road Bagshot Surrey GU19 5AS

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Surrey Heath Borough Council 100018679 2022

Application
number

Scale @ A4

Date

Address

Title

Author: SMVersion 5

Demolition of existing dwelling and all associated
buildings and structures and erection of 3
detached three bedroom dwellings with

associated car parking, refuse storage and
collection point and landscaping.

Proposal

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

22/0655/FFU Reg. Date  5 July 2022 Lightwater 

 

 

 LOCATION: 17 Junction Road, Lightwater, Surrey, GU18 5TQ 

 PROPOSAL: Raised patio to the rear of the dwelling (retrospective). 

 TYPE: Full Planning Application 

 APPLICANT: Mr Wayne Russell 

 OFFICER: Melissa Turney 

 

This application would normally be determined under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
However, it has been called-in by Cllr Galliford due to concerns of loss of privacy and amenity 
for neighbours.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT, subject to conditions 
 
1.0 SUMMARY   

 
1.1 This application seeks retrospective planning permission for a raised patio to the rear of the 

dwelling.  
 

1.2 The principle of the development is considered acceptable. For the reasoning explained in 
this report, the development results in no harm to the character of the area and is 
acceptable in terms of the residential amenity impacts. The proposal is therefore 
recommended for approval, subject to planning conditions.  
 

 
2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
2.1 The proposal site consists of a detached two storey dwelling which has recently been 

extended and is located within the settlement area of Lightwater. The site benefits from a 
rear garden and off-street parking to the front of the dwellinghouse. The land levels on the 
site slightly slope downwards from the highway, with the rear garden is on a lower level. 
The neighbours to either side are residential.  
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT HISTORY 

 
3.1 84/0378 Two storey side extension – refused, appeal withdrawn. 

3.2 84/0762 Two storey side extension – refused, appeal allowed. 

3.3 20/0453 Part two, part single rear extension and conversion of the integral garage, 
approved 
 

3.4 20/0646 Front porch, conversion of garage, part two, part single storey rear 
extension, side and rear rooflights and first floor side elevation window.  
Approved, implemented. 
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5 



 

 

3.5 21/0420/NMA Non material amendment to planning permission reference 20/0646 (Front 
porch canopy roof, conversion of integral garage to habitable 
accommodation and part-two storey, part-single storey rear extension 
including side and rear elevation rooflights and first floor side elevation 
window.) to allow for the insertion of a flat roof lantern to main flat roof and 
the use of grey roof tiles. Approved, implemented. 
 

 
4.0 THE PROPOSAL 

 
4.1 Retrospective planning permission is sought for a raised patio to the rear of the dwelling.  

  
4.2 The raised patio spans the width of the dwelling, has a height of 0.3m adjacent to the rear 

elevation of the dwelling and increases to 0.5m due to the change in land levels on the site. 
There are steps down to the garden and planting areas to the sides of the patio. The patio 
has a depth of 5.3m and area of 53 m² including the steps.  
 

4.3 The retaining walls, including the planting areas are concrete finished in white render and 
the patio slabs are grey.  
 

 
5.0 CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

 
5.1 Windlesham 

Parish Council 
Object as it is Council policy not to approve retrospective applications. 
[Officer comment: It is unclear whether this is the Parish’s policy. It is 
not Surrey Heath’s policy as a retrospective application must be treated 
on its own merits and determined against national and local adopted 
policy]  

 
6.0 REPRESENTATION 

 
6.1 A total of 7 individual letters were sent to surrounding properties on 2rd November 2021. At 

the time of preparation of this report 1 letter of representation has been received in support 
of the application with the reasons summarised below:  
 

• Planting adds screening  
• Planting also act as sound barrier  
• Even without the planting the use of the patio has not resulted in any obtrusive 

noise or loss of privacy.   
 

6.2 Correspondence has been received to draw the officer’s attention to the hedge on the 
boundary with neighbour at no. 19 that has been cut down. A further officer site visit to the 
application site and neighbour’s garden confirm that the hedge has been cut back on the 
application side but remains of a substantial size.  
 

 
7.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATION 

 
7.1 The site lies in the urban settlement where development is acceptable in principle.  In 

considering this proposal regard has been had to the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), the National Design Guide (NDG), Policies DM9 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath 
Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 2012 (CSDMP) and 
guidance within the Surrey Heath Residential Design Guide Supplementary Planning 
Document 2017 (RDG) as well as the  Lightwater Village Design Statement (LVDS) 
Supplementary Planning Document 2007.  
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

 

7.2 The principle of the development is acceptable, therefore, the main issues to be considered 
within this application are:   
 

• Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and host dwelling; 
and,  

• Impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties. 
 

7.3 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 

7.3.1 Policies  CP2 and DM9 of the CSDMP are aligned with the design principles within the 
NPPF. Policy CP2 states that development should respect and enhance the quality of the 
urban, rural, natural and historic environments. Policy DM9 states that development should 
respect and enhance the local, natural and historic character of the environment, paying 
particular regard to scale, materials, massing, bulk and density, and that trees and 
vegetation worthy of retention should be protected. The LVDS seeks to protect the design 
of the residential part village by respecting the existing character.  

 

7.3.2 The raised patio is located to the rear of the dwelling. There is limited visual impact from 
public vantage points. The design of the raised patio is finished in white render walls and 
grey patio slabs which reflect the finishing materials of the host dwelling. The patio is not 
considered to result in harm to the character of the area or the host dwelling.  
 

7.3.3 Therefore, the development complies with  the NPPF, Policy DM9 of the CSDMP, the RDG 
and LVDS.  

  
7.4 Impact on residential amenity 

 
7.4.1 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should create places with a high 

standard of amenity for existing and future users. Policy DM9 states that development will 
be acceptable where it respects the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties 
and uses. It is necessary to take into account matters such as overlooking, overshadowing, 
loss of light and an overbearing or unneighbourly built form.  
 

7.4.2 Principle 8.1 of the RDG states that developments which have a significant adverse effect 
on the privacy of neighbouring properties will be resisted. Principle 8.1 states that 
development which have a significant advise effect on the privacy of neighbouring 
properties will be resisted. Guiding text paragraph 8.3 of the RDG sets out that areas of 
particular sensitivity are habitable rooms, the first 3m of private space behind a rear 
elevation and balconies or terraces which are the sole source of private outside space for a 
home.  
  

7.4.3 The raised patio retains a separation distance of approximately 2.1m to the common 
boundary with the neighbour at no.19. This neighbour is on slightly higher land level and 
the boundary treatment on the common boundary is high hedging. From the officer’s site 
visit it is noted that this hedge has been trimmed which has reduced the thickness of the 
hedge. This neighbour has a single storey projection adjacent to the common boundary 
which has a similar depth to the raised patio, which also provides a level of screening. 
Overall, the height of the raised patio compared to the lowered patio area has not resulted 
in an significant increase of level of overlooking or resulted in a loss of privacy into this 
neighbour’s garden which is considered to be materially different. The hedge acts as the 
boundary treatment and provides a sufficient level of screening for both the application site 
and this neighbour to protect the privacy of both. 
 

7.4.4 The raised patio retains a separation distance of approximately 1.2m to the common 
boundary (including the flower bed area) with the neighbour at no.15. This neighbour is set 
further forward in the plot such that the rear elevation is set behind the host dwelling and 
the raised patio. However, this neighbour has a detached single storey outbuilding located 

Page 51



 

 

on the common boundary which has a similar rear elevation to the host dwelling, which 
provides a level of screening which restricts views back towards this neighbour’s rear 
elevation.  
 

7.4.5 As set out in the RDG the 3m of private space behind a rear elevation are the most 
sensitive. Due to the existing boundary treatment and existing built form on the common 
boundaries it is not considered there are direct views towards the neighbours’ immediate 
private amenity areas behind their rear elevations. The site has existing first floor rear 
windows which have views towards the neighbours’ rear gardens, as such while the raised 
patio has partial views towards the rear part of neighbours’ gardens this is not considered 
to be significantly materially different to the existing situation. This neighbour at no 15 has 
also written in letter of support that the raised patio has not result in obtrusive noise or loss 
of privacy.   
 

7.4.6 It is therefore considered that the raised patio has resulted in no unacceptable level of 
overlooking or material loss of privacy to the rear gardens of the neighbours. As such, the 
development complies with the NPPF, Policy DM9 of the CSDMP and the RDG. 
 

 
8.0 POSITIVE/PROACTIVE WORKING AND PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

 
8.1 In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a positive, creative 

and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of paragraphs 38-41 of the NPPF.  
This included 1 or more of the following: 
  

 a) Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process to advise 
progress, timescale or recommendation. 

  
8.2 Under the Equalities Act 2010 the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, harassment or victimisation of persons by reason of age, disability, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex and sexual orientation. This planning application has been 
processed and assessed with due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty. The proposal 
is not considered to conflict with this duty. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 The  development has no adverse impact on the character and appearance of the host 

dwelling or local area, nor on the amenities of the adjoining residents, subject to the 
recommended conditions. The development complies with the CSDMP, the RDG, LVDS 
and the NPPF.  
 

 
10.0   RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
 1. There shall be no variation from the following approved plans: 
  
 Drawing reference: 001, Received: 05.07.2022 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning and as 

advised in ID.17a of the Planning Practice Guidance. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 52



PAC 22/0655/FFU 17 Junction Road Lightwater Surrey GU18 5TQ 

Site Location Plan  

 

 

 

Site Plan  

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Rear Elevation  

 

 

Side elevation  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



Photos  

 

 

Views towards no. 19  

 

 

 

 

Page 55



Views towards no. 15 

 

Page 56



22/0655/FFU
13 Oct 2022

Planning Applications

17 Junction Road Lightwater Surrey GU18
5TQ

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Surrey Heath Borough Council 100018679 2022

Application
number

Scale @ A4

Date

Address

Title

Author: SMVersion 5

Raised patio to the rear of the dwelling
(retrospective).

Proposal

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION & RELATED APPLICATIONS FOR 
CONSIDERATION BY THE PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
 

NOTES 
 

Officers Report 
 
Officers have prepared a report for each planning or related application on the  Planning 
Committee Index which details:- 
 
• Site Description 
• Relevant Planning History 
• The Proposal 
• Consultation Responses/Representations 
• Planning Considerations 
• Conclusion 
 
Each report also includes a recommendation to either approve or refuse the application.  
Recommended reason(s) for refusal or condition(s) of approval and reason(s) including 
informatives are set out in full in the report. 
 
How the Committee makes a decision: 
 
The Planning Applications Committee’s decision on an application can be based only on 
planning issues.  These include: 
 
• Legislation, including national planning policy guidance and statements. 
• Policies in the adopted Surrey Heath Local Plan and emerging Local Development 

Framework, including Supplementary Planning Documents. 
• Sustainability issues. 
• Layout and design issues, including the effect on the street or area (but not loss of 

private views). 
• Impacts on countryside openness. 
• Effect on residential amenities, through loss of light, overlooking or noise 

disturbance. 
• Road safety and traffic issues. 
• Impacts on historic buildings. 
• Public opinion, where it raises relevant planning issues. 
 
The Committee cannot base decisions on: 
 
• Matters controlled through other legislation, such as Building Regulations e.g. 

structural stability, fire precautions. 
• Loss of property value. 
• Loss of views across adjoining land. 
• Disturbance from construction work. 
• Competition e.g. from a similar retailer or business. 
• Moral issues. 
• Need for development or perceived lack of a need (unless specified in the report). 
• Private issues between neighbours i.e. boundary disputes, private rights of way.  The 

issue of covenants has no role in the decision to be made on planning applications. 
 
 
 
Reports will often refer to specific use classes.  The Town & Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1995 (as amended) is summarised for information below: 

Page 59

Agenda Annex



A1. Shops  Shops, retail warehouses, hairdressers, 
undertakers, travel and ticket agencies, post 
offices, pet shops, sandwich bars, showrooms, 
domestic hire shops and funeral directors. 

A2. Financial & professional 
Services 

Banks, building societies, estate and 
 employment agencies, professional  and financial 
services and betting offices. 

A3. Restaurants and Cafes For the sale of food and drink for consumption on 
the premises – restaurants, snack bars and 
cafes. 

A4. Drinking Establishments Public houses, wine bars or other drinking 
establishments (but not nightclubs). 

A5. Hot Food Takeaways For the sale of hot food consumption off the 
premises.    

B1.  Business Offices, research and development,  light industry 
appropriate to a residential area.                                                               

B2. General Industrial Use for the carrying on of an  industrial process 
other than one falling within class B1 above. 

B8. Storage or Distribution Use for the storage or as a distribution centre 
including open air storage. 

C1. Hotels  Hotels, board and guest houses where, in each 
case no significant element of care is provided. 

C2. Residential Institutions Residential care homes, hospitals, nursing 
homes, boarding schools, residential colleges 
and training centres. 

C2A. Secure Residential 
Institutions 

Use for a provision of secure  residential 
accommodation, including use as a prison, young 
offenders institution, detention centre, secure 
training centre, custody centre, short term holding 
centre, secure hospital, secure local authority 
accommodation or use as a military barracks. 

C3. Dwelling houses Family houses or houses occupied by up to six 
residents living together as a single household, 
including a household where care is provided for 
residents. 

C4. Houses in Multiple 
Occupation 

Small shared dwelling houses occupied by 
between three and six unrelated individuals, as 
their only or main residence, who share basic 
amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom. 

D1. Non-residential 
Institutions 

Clinics, health centres, crèches, day nurseries, 
day centres, school, art galleries, museums, 
libraries, halls, places of worship, church halls, 
law courts. Non-residential education and training 
areas. 

D2. Assembly & Leisure Cinemas, music and concert halls, bingo and 
dance halls (but not nightclubs), swimming baths, 
skating  rinks, gymnasiums or sports 
arenas (except for motor sports, or where 
firearms are used). 

 Sui Generis Theatres, houses in multiple paying occupation, 
hostels providing no significant element of care, 
scrap yards, garden centres, petrol filling stations 
and shops selling and/or  
displaying motor vehicles, retail warehouse clubs, 
nightclubs, laundrettes, dry cleaners, taxi 
businesses, amusement centres and casinos. 
 

 

Page 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Application Number: 21/1176 Solstrand, Station Road, Bagshot*
	04b - 21_1176_FFU - Solstrand Station Road Bagshot Annex Ai - Highways Comments November
	04c - 21_1176_FFU - Solstrand Station Road Bagshot Annex Aii - Highways Comments December
	04d - 21_1176_FFU - Solstrand Station Road Bagshot Plans
	04e - 21_1176_FFU -Solstrand Station Road Bagshot Location Map

	5 Application Number: 22/0655 17 Junction Road, Lightwater
	05b - 22_0655_FFU - 17 Junction Road Lightwater Plans
	05c - 22_0655_FFU - 17 Junction Road Location Map

	 Glossary



